ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON M LI TARY AND VETERANS AFFAI RS
April 4, 2017
1: 09 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Chris Tuck, Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Vice Chair
Representative Justin Parish
Representative |Ivy Spohnhol z
Representative Lora Reinbold
Representati ve Dan Saddl er

MEMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve George Rauscher
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BILL NO 152
"An Act relating to the organized mlitia; and relating to the
authority of the adjutant general."

- MOVED CSHB 152(M.V) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 178
"An Act relating to recognition of individual veterans along
certain veterans' nmenori al roads and on certain veterans'
menorial bridges."

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 125
"An Act relating to a veteran's designation on an identification
card or a driver's license for Hmwng veterans and Lao veterans."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 152
SHORT TI TLE: ORGANI ZED M LI TI A; AK ST. DEFENSE FORCE
SPONSOR(s): M LI TARY & VETERANS' AFFAI RS

03/ 06/ 17 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 06/ 17 (H) MV, STA

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -1- April 4, 2017



03/ 14/ 17 (H) M.V AT 1: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
03/ 14/ 17 (H) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 23/ 17 (H) MLV AT 1:00 PM GRUENBERG 120
03/ 23/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 23/ 17 (H) M NUTE( M.V)

03/ 30/ 17 (H) MLV AT 1:00 PM GRUENBERG 120
03/ 30/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 30/ 17 (H) M NUTE( M.V)

04/ 04/ 17 (H) MLV AT 1:00 PM GRUENBERG 120

BILL: HB 178
SHORT TI TLE. NAM NG PORTI ONS OF VETERANS HI GHWAYS
SPONSOR(s): EASTVAN

03/ 14/ 17 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 14/ 17 (H MV, TRA
04/ 04/ 17 (H MLV AT 1:00 PM GRUENBERG 120

BILL: HB 125
SHORT TI TLE: LAQ' HMONG VETERAN DRIVER S LIC. & I D CAR
SPONSOR(s): TARR

02/ 15/ 17 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 15/ 17 (H) MV, STA
04/ 04/ 17 (H MLV AT 1:00 PM GRUENBERG 120

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE DAVI D EASTIVAN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Speaki ng as the sponsor, introduced HB 178
and answer ed questi ons.

YUKON DON TANNER

Tal keet na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support during the hearing of
HB 178.

DAVE GLENN

Wasill a, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support during the hearing of
HB 178.

SUSAN JONES
(No address provi ded)

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 2- April 4, 2017



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support during the hearing of
HB 178.

ROBERT DCEHL, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs

Joi nt Base El nendorf-Ri chardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of anmendnents and
answered a question during the hearing of HB 178.

M KE LESMANN, Legi sl ative Liaison

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing of HB
178.

MARK NEI DHOLD, Chi ef

Desi gn and Construction Standards

Di vi sion of Statew de Design and Engi neering Services

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing of HB
178.

REPRESENTATI VE GERAN TARR

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Speaki ng as the sponsor, introduced HB 125
and answer ed questi ons.

PASERT LEE

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support during the hearing of
HB 125.

W LSON VANG

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in Hnong, translated to English
by Seng Her, in support during the hearing of HB 125.

XAl SHOUA VANG

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in Hnong, translated to English
by Seng Her, in support during the hearing of HB 125.

TONGLOU VANG

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 3- April 4, 2017



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in Hmwng, translated to English
by Seng Her, in support during the hearing of HB 125.

Xl AGE VANG

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in Hwmwng, translated to English
by Seng Her, in support during the hearing of HB 125.

MAI Xl ONG

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support during the hearing of
HB 125.

SAI VI T VONGRATSAMY

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in Lao, translated to Hnong by
Pasert Lee, then translated to English by Seng Her, in support
during the hearing of HB 125.

SAMAK VONGVI LAY

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in Lao, translated to Hnong by
Pasert Lee, then translated to English by Seng Her, in support
during the hearing of HB 125.

ROBERT DCEHL, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs

Joi nt Base El nendorf-Ri chardson, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support during the hearing of
HB 125 and answered a questi on.

VERDI E BOXEN, Director

Veterans Affairs

Ofice of Veteran Affairs

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support during the hearing of
HB 125 and answered questi ons.

MAI RAM REZ- XI ONG

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Speaki ng on behal f of her father, testified
in support during the hearing of HB 125.

BEDY XI ONG

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -4- April 4, 2017



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in support during the hearing of
HB 125.

ZOUNEE YANG

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in support during the hearing of
HB 125.

LUCKY XI ONG

Wasill a, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support during the hearing of
HB 125.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 09: 33 PM

CHAIR CHRIS TUCK called the House Special Commttee on Mlitary
and Veterans' Affairs nmeeting to order at 1: 09 p.m
Representati ves Tuck, Spohnholz, Reinbold, Saddler, Parish, and
LeDoux were present at the call to order

HB 152- ORGANI ZED M LI TI' A; AK ST. DEFENSE FORCE

1:10: 26 PM

CHAI R TUCK announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 152, "An Act relating to the organized nilitia
and relating to the authority of the adjutant general."

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD said she was not inforned of the
deadline for submtting anendnments to HB 152.

1:12: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noved to report HB 152, as anmended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER obj ect ed.

1:12: 46 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Spohnhol z, LeDoux,

Parish, and Tuck voted in favor of HB 152. Represent ati ves
Saddl er and Reinbold voted against it. Therefore, CSHB 152( MLV)

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 5- April 4, 2017



was reported out of the House Special Comrittee on Mlitary and
Veterans' Affairs by a vote of 4-2.

1:13:16 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from1:13 p.m to 1:16 p. m

HB 178- NAM NG PORTI ONS OF VETERANS HI GHVWAYS

1:15: 44 PM

CHAI R TUCK announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 178, "An Act relating to recognition of
i ndi vi dual veterans along certain veterans' nenorial roads and
on certain veterans' nenorial bridges."

1: 16: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAVI D EASTMAN, Al aska State Legislature, inforned
the conmttee he was approached by |ocal veterans seeking a way
to further recognize veterans in each of the six veterans
menorials throughout the state. He directed attention to a
docunent provided in the comrttee packet which was a picture of
the Veterans' Hi ghway nenorial in the Mtanuska-Susitna region
He described the existing nenorial as generic and said the bil
woul d recognize particular veterans for their servi ce.
Additional coments on the bill have been heard from | ocal
veterans, the Departnment of MIlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA),
and the Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities
(DOTPF); a [committee] substitute for HB 178 is forthcom ng.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER observed there are over 72,000 veterans
living in Al aska and asked why it is nore appropriate to nane
menorials for certain veterans - and thereby exclude others -
rat her than to honor all veterans by nenorial roads or bridges.

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN acknow edged there is room for a bal ance
between a generic and an individual recognition of veterans;
under this proposal, the nanmes of nenorial highways woul d remain
unchanged, but at various points along, or adjacent to, the
hi ghway there would be an opportunity for individual recognition
for a period of three to five years.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how the tenporary designation would
be acconpli shed.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 6- April 4, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN expl ained |ocal and official veterans'
organi zations would submit names for consideration by the Al aska
State Legislature; after |legislative commendation, veterans
would be eligible for individual recognition. Representati ve
Eastman further explained |egislative comrendation would occur
by a citation passed by the House and Senate, and subsequently
DOTPF woul d inplenent the placenment of narkers along veterans'
menori al s.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER restated his question regarding the
tenporary designation

1: 22: 41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ pointed out the sponsor statenent
indicates the cost of signage would be funded by gifts,
donations, and grants received by DOTPF and/or DWA;, however,
t hese departnents do not have the capacity to raise funds.

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN advi sed veterans' organizations would
collect and solicit donations for the project. [HB 178] would
gi ve DOTPF the authority to accept funds and would allow DWA to
direct donors to a certain account managed by DOTPF.

REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHCOLZ questioned whether [DWA's] state
government web site would direct donors to contribute to a
private organization

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN said no. The bill gives DOTPF the
authority to collect and receive funds for this specific
pur pose.

REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ asked whether veterans' organizations
have commtted their support for the |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN indicated yes, and their testinony is
forthcom ng.

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH posited a situation in which a veterans'
organi zation raised noney for the recognition of a certain
veteran; in this case would DWA direct said funds to the
individual, or would the funds go into a "common pot" to be
di stributed between all the honored veterans.

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN stated the intent of the proposed

legislation is to allow donors to contribute to "that account,”
or one of the six current nenorials should they choose to do so.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -7- April 4, 2017



1:26:17 PM
CHAI R TUCK opened public testinony on HB 178.
1:26:55 PM

YUKON DON TANNER informed the conmttee he is a Navy veteran.
M. Tanner said HB 178 is another step forward in honoring
veterans by placing the nanmes of selected veterans on a signpost
in designated [transportation] corridors. Al though there are
concerns with the bill, he opined all concerns can be addressed
in an efficient way and urged for passage of the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether M. Tanner is aware of any
veterans that veterans' organizations seek to nomnate for
speci al distinction.

MR. TANNER said he did not at this tinme. |In further response to
Representative Saddler regarding his affiliations, M. Tanner
said he is a |life nmenber of the Veterans of Foreign Wars (VFW,
in Talkeetna and a nenber of [American Legion] Post 35 in
Wasi | | a.

1: 29: 04 PM

DAVE GLENN inforned the commttee he is a Vietnam veteran. M.
G enn expressed his belief the proposed legislation is an
extension of the recognition of veterans that began with the
dedi cation of the Mat-Su Veterans' H ghway. He said he is a

life menber of VFW a life nenber of Vietnam Veterans of
Anerica, and a nenber of the [MAT-SU Veterans' Foundation] in
Wasi | | a. M. denn directed attention to a docunent from

[ Deputy Comm ssioner Robert Doehl, DWA] [docunent not provided]
and opined the intent of the legislation is to conply with all
establ i shed rules, policies, and regulations currently in place.
In addition, there is precedent for the legislation along the
Seward H ghway Dow i ng Road over pass. He affirmed the funding
would be on a volunteer basis and provided an exanple of the
avai lability of funding in this regard. M. denn listed the
names of several veterans whom he suggested should be
recogni zed.

1: 32: 09 PM

SUSAN JONES informed the commttee she and her husband are Arny
veterans and their son served in the U S. Air Force. She agreed

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 8- April 4, 2017



with the recognition of veterans in Alaska, noting she has
observed veterans who are proud of their mlitary service and
are deserving of honor.

1: 33: 27 PM

CHAIR TUCK, after ascertaining no one else wished to testify,
cl osed public testinony, noting public testinony nay be reopened
at a subsequent heari ng.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER referred to questions raised by Deputy
Comm ssioner Doehl, in a docunment dated [4/3/17], which was
provided in the commttee packet, and asked Representative
Eastman to respond.

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN said [if HB 178 is enacted] the role of
DWA would be mninmal; the bill requests DWA to accept nanes
from official Al aska veterans' organizations and to forward the
names and the sponsoring organizations to the legislature
annual | y. Further, in response to a question from DWA related
to the eligibility of whose honored, he explained a forthcom ng
version of the bill would clarify an eligible veteran is one who
has been a nenber of the arnmed forces, the National Guard, the
Al aska State Defense Force, or the Alaska Territorial CGuard, and
who was honorably di schar ged.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked which veterans' organizations are
designated as [I RC 501(c) 19] charitabl e organizations.

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN said at |east four organizations in
Al aska neet that designation. The aforenentioned Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) tax exenption is specific to posts or
organi zations of past or present nenbers of the US. Arned
For ces.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER surm sed the veterans' organizations
include VFW and Anerican Legion and asked for the other
or gani zati ons.

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN wi | | provide the requested information.
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER questi oned whet her Representative Eastnman
woul d accept an anmendnment to the |egislation which would specify
a veterans' organization would need to neet the [IRC 501(c) 19]
t ax- exenpt standard.

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN sai d yes.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 9- April 4, 2017



1: 37: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER suggested DWA seeks further paraneters
in the bill as to who would be eligible, for exanple, veterans
who were Al aska residents during their service or veterans who
are now Al aska residents.

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN pointed out the legislation does not
direct DWA to verify eligibility; veterans' organizations would
nomnate a veteran and the legislature would make the final
determ nation as long as the veteran was honorably di scharged.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER expressed his understanding that in
passing citations, the |egislature does not conplete a process
of vetting or fact-checking qualifications. He surm sed the
legislation requires the legislature to assune additiona
responsibilities.

1: 39: 45 PM

ROBERT DOEHL, Deputy Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs, disclosed he is a
menber of VFW Anerican Legion, Iraq and Afghani stan Veterans of
America, and the Vietnam Helicopter Pilots Association, all of
which are IRC 501(c) 19 organi zations. He said DWA supports an
anmendnent to limt the applications to [|IRC 501(c) 19
organi zations and expressed concerns related to the vetting
process and [the | ack of] an adequate definition of veterans who

are eligible for recognition. In addition, he questioned
whet her confirmng an honorable discharge is a statutory
requirenent. [ DWA] strongly supports an efficient donation

process simlar to that currently wutilized by the Al aska
Departnent of Fish & Game and a provision to direct undedi cated
donations to certain veterans. Finally, DWA requests that
veterans would be given a provision to opt-out if the honoree
chose not to be recogni zed as an i ndi vi dual .

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked M. Doehl to comment on the val ue
of honoring an individual veteran as opposed to honoring all
vet erans.

MR. DOEHL opined there is value in both fornms of recognition.
REPRESENTATI VE SPOHNHOLZ inquired as to whether the sponsor has

det er m ned whet her contri butions to t he state are t ax
deducti bl e.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -10- April 4, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN sai d yes. Currently, the state and each
of its subdivisions would be eligible; however, establishing
eligibility for a municipality requires paynment of a $150 filing
fee wth IRS. Therefore, every governnent entity in Al aska
woul d be eligible, but its status would need to be confirned.

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH asked about the cost of installing and
mai nt ai ni ng si gnage.

1:44: 55 PM

M KE LESMANN, Legislative Liaison, Ofice of the Comm ssioner
Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities, estinmated
signs cost between $800-$1, 000 m nimum for materials and | abor.

1: 45: 03 PM

MARK  NEI DHOLD, Chi ef, Design and Construction Standards,
Di vi si on of St at ewi de Desi gn and Engi neeri ng Servi ces,
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities, explained a
sign of the type discussed in the legislation can cost up to
$2,500 each, dependi ng upon | ocation, size, and other factors.

CHAI R TUCK asked whether the signs nust stand al one or could be
added to an existing road sign.

MR, NEIDHOLD cautioned adding to an existing road sign risks
distracting from the nessage of the existing sign; however,
signs are routinely added to |ight poles.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked which federal highway visibility
standards may inpact the placenent of the signs honoring
vet erans.

MR. NEI DHOLD said 23 Code of Federal Regulations, in the Mnua
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, allows the state to nodify
the federal standards following the Alaska Traffic Mnua
Suppl enent . In further response to Representative Saddler's
guestions of how big signs can be and if sign |ocations are
limted, he added size depends on the traffic speed along the
route and the location of other signs that my be considered
nore critical; in fact, the manual directs DOTPF to only instal
signs that are necessary for the operation of the highway, wth
m nor exceptions. He described the hierarchy of signs from the
hi ghest order, such as regulatory signs, to the |owest order,
such as nenorial signs.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -11- April 4, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER further asked whether a sign that is
damaged or vandalized may cost less to replace or the sane, and
if the state or private individuals would be liable for the
repl acenent cost.

MR. NEI DHOLD advi sed the cost of repair would depend upon the
| evel of damage.

1: 51: 35 PM
CHAI R TUCK announced that HB 178 was held over.

HB 125- LAQ HMONG VETERAN DRIVER S LIC. & I D CAR

1: 51: 50 PM

CHAI R TUCK announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 125, "An Act relating to a veteran's designation
on an identification card or a driver's license for Hnong
veterans and Lao veterans."

1:52: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGERAN TARR, Alaska State Legislature, sponsor,
said HB 125 would recogni ze Hnong veterans in Alaska for their
service to the US. by authorizing a designation on their
driver's licenses. She infornmed the commttee Hnrong veterans
served during the tinme of the Vietnam War in what is now known
as the secret war, when intensified war actions were taken in
Laos. She noted many Hnong individuals who were recruited to
serve the U S mlitary were very young, yet nore than 50 years
| ater, Hnhong veterans have not received the benefits prom sed to
t hem Representative Tarr stressed the bill is an opportunity
to recogni ze service by Hrong veterans before it is too late

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER urged for the photos provided in the
commttee packet to be nade available to the public.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR, in response to Chair Tuck's question about
the ages of the recruits, said some were as young as 10 years of
age.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked what evidence is required to prove
one's status as a Hhong or Laos veteran.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -12- April 4, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE TARR said federal docunentation substantiates
mlitary service; she deferred the question to Robert Doehl,
Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER directed attention to the bill on page 1,
lines 8-10, and page 2, lines 11-13, which read [in part]:

a Hnong veteran or Lao veteran who served in mlitary
operations in support of the United States in the
Ki ngdom of Laos between February 28, 1961, and May 15,
1975.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER poi nted out references on page 1, [line]
13 and on page 2, lines 1 and 16, state "a Hnong veteran or Lao
veteran," and asked whether all five references are conplete.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said yes. She offered to clarify the
af orenentioned |anguage wth Legislative Legal Ser vi ces,
Legi sl ative Affairs Agency.

1:59: 05 PM
CHAI R TUCK opened public testinony on HB 125.
1:59: 32 PM

PASERT LEE stated his support for HB 125, and noted that during
the Vietnam War, from 1961 to 1975, the Hnmong and Lao people
wor ked very hard for Anmerica. He recogni zed the vast nunber of
people's lives lost during the war in different parts of
Vietnam He offered to bring evidence to prove the truthful ness
of the | osses. He stated his hope that the American people
woul d support the bill for the Hnong and Lao veterans' |icense
pl ates and identification cards. He urged the Senate and House
to support the bill.

MR. LEE related after fighting for America he has lived in the
US for alnost 42 years and [the Hrong people] have not
received any [recognition]. He enphasized that HB 125 would
recogni ze the heavy and painful years of 1961-75 for the Hmrong
and Lao people. He told sone of the efforts and actions of the
Hrong and Lao soldiers during the war. He expl ai ned the Hnong
peopl e who fought for the U S lost their country, honeland, and
much nore. He urged the Senate, House, and chair to open their
eyes to look at the bill for the Hhong and Lao peopl e.

2: 04: 00 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -13- April 4, 2017



WLSON VANG testified in Hwng translated by Seng Her. M.
WIlson Vang said he served with CIA during the Hnong Veteran
secret war from 1961-1975 in North Vietnam During that tine
his | eaders were John Kennedy and President N xon. He stated
that Hmong veterans lost their land, which caused himto cone to
Aeri ca. He offered his support of HB 125 because it helps
recogni ze all the service of Hmong and Lao veterans in the war.
He explained that in Anerica, the Hnong people are not
recogni zed, and this bill would help begin that process.

2:08:16 PM

XAl SHOUA VANG testified in Hmng translated by Seng Her. He
stated that he was born June 3, 1957 and was requested to join
the war from 1968 to 1975 and protect the [Hmong nation] by John
Kennedy, President N xon, General Vang Pao, and others. He said
part of the reason why [the Hmong people] have mgrated to the
U S. is because of the loss of their country. R ght now, their
country is not under the control of their people. M. Xai shoua
Vang offered his inpression that [since the war], the Hrong and
Lao veterans have not been recognized for their involvenent in
the war. He remarked, "Today | cone here to support HB 125, and
ask for the representatives through the chair to support HB
125." He urged the committee nenbers, as |eaders of the state,
to recogni ze the inportance of HB 125.

2:13: 25 PM

TONGLOU VANG testified in Hmwng translated by Seng Her. He said
he was born August 10, 1933 and served in the war from 1961-75.
While involved in the war in 1965, he received injuries in his
chest and left leg. Many lives were lost in the |ocal conmmunity

because of the Vietnam soldiers. Afterwards in 1975, the
Americans and Ceneral Vang Pao and | eaders departed the area and
the surviving Hmong comunity was left wth nothing. He

expl ai ned that w thout any |eaders, [the Hnong soldiers] had to
seek other shelters, which has led to the npbst recent gorilla
war . He noted that during a six-nonth long training mssion
away from his famly time he lost many relatives and famly
menbers. He requested that the state |eaders support of HB 125
and recognize the service in this war. He expressed that [the
Hmong peopl e] would not forget the conmttee's actions.

2:18: 40 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -14- April 4, 2017



XIAGE VANG testified in Hnhong translated by Seng Her. He
detailed that he was born in 1945 and now is 75 years old. He
t hanked the chair and the commttee nenbers for hearing him He
explained that in 1961 President Kennedy and the King of Laos
di scussed a witten declaration of the participation engagenent
with the Hmong and Lao people; troops were involved in the war
to help protect the nation. During that tine, troops were given
supplies such as a radar to track down and control the war.

[ There was a brief discussion in Hrong about radar.]

MR. Xl AGE VANG expl ai ned that because of the radar given to [the
Hrong people], they were better able to identify their
situation; unfortunately, the radar was |ost. He stated that in
that area, bodies have been identified and have not been
retrieved, which has caused the Hmong people to mgrate to
anot her area. He requested that the chair, the |eaders, and
everyone recogni ze HB 125 as sonething of inportance to him and
the Hrong and Lao veterans. He asked that the bill be noved
forward and presented to the other |eaders of the state. He
t hanked the commttee for hearing the bill.

2:26: 55 PM

MAI XIONG testified in support of HB 125 to recogni ze Hnong and
Lao veterans with license plates and | Ds. She said the bill
woul d benefit the Hnong people who helped win the war. She

explained that the war was very difficult with many casualties
and was the reason many Hmong and Lao individuals cane to
America. She added that she wants nore people to know about the
efforts of the Hmong people because the generation of veterans
is passing. She asked the commttee to "pass bill for the Hrong
veterans, because that is the only thing we want to get."

2:28:32 PM

SAIVIT VONGRATSAMY testified in Laos translated to Hmong by
Pasert Lee and to English by Seng Her. He noted the need to
honor people's commtnent, which HB 125 does. He thanked the
committee for hearing his testinony.

2:32:02 PM
SAMAK VONGVI LAY testified in Laos translated to Hrong by Pasert

Lee and to English by Seng Her. He informed the commttee that
in the war he was a soldier and a cook for the |eaders. He

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 15- April 4, 2017



stated that HB 125 is very inportant to him and for the
recogni tion of the Hnong and Lao veterans.

2:34:32 PM

ROBERT DOEHL, Deputy Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs, stated DWA's
support for HB 125 which recognizes those who have nmade
substantial sacrifices in service to the US. and who also
brought nmany Anerican service nenbers to safety. He advi sed
there is an established nethod to verify a veteran's status.

2:35:44 PM

VERDIE BOWEN, Director, Veterans Affairs, Ofice of Veteran
Affairs, Departnent of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs, expressed
his support for HB 125. He provided a brief history of the
30, 000- renber Hmong arny that faced 70, 000-100,000 soldiers of
the North Vietnanese Arny along the Ho Chi Mnh Trail in Laos,
suffering huge |losses of life. In response to Representative
Saddler's question as to the nunmber of Hiong veterans [in
Al aska], he estimted 30-40 veterans would receive veterans'
status on their driver's |icenses. He said in April 2016, the
Al aska Veteran Advisory Council, Ofice of Veterans Affairs,
DWA, voted in support of individuals receiving the veteran
designation, and also related a statenent of personal insight
into the service of the Hmng veterans.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER restated his intent to use the definition
of Hnong veteran and Lao veteran [text previously provided].

MR. BOVEN i ndi cated his agreenent.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether the federal certification
of Hmong or Lao veteran status would suffice for the purposes of
t he proposed | egislation.

MR. BOVWEN expl ai ned Hmwng and Lao veteran status was designated
on their entrance visas at the tinme the veterans entered the
US.; the Ofice of Veteran Affairs would utilize a program
simlar to that utilized for veterans of the Alaska Territorial
Guard.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER questioned whether the verification would
be an efficient process, given the age of the entrance visas.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -16- April 4, 2017



MR. BOWEN explained Hmong veterans' groups in Anchorage have
al ready established the service of their nenbers.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER st ated his support for [HB 125].
2:40: 41 PM

MAI RAM REZ- XIONG infornmed the commttee she was speaking on
behal f of her father, Lieutenant Colonel Xiong. She spoke of
what the Hmong people have done for the country after
immgrating. M. Ramrez-Xiong related her father has done nuch
for this country and HB 125 woul d denonstrate sonme understandi ng
by the Anmerican people, because nmany are unaware of the service
of the Hnong people to a country unknown to them Ms. Ramrez-
Xiong said she is a US. citizen and urged that her father and
ot her Hrong veterans receive their well-earned recognition.

2:43:12 PM

BEDY Xl ONG expressed her strong support of HB 125 because Hmong
vet erans have not been recogni zed.

2:44:45 PM

ZOUNEE YANG said both of her dads served in the Vietnam War at a
very young age and she wants HB 125 to pass. The bill is snal
gratitude for all the Hrong and other tribes involved and woul d
make them happy. Ms. Yang stated she is first generation [U S
citizen] and wants to be able to teach her children about their
grandparents' history of service with the US mlitary, which
may not be taught in school.

2:46: 38 PM

LUCKY XI ONG said his father served from 1961-1965 and stated his
support for HB 125. M. Xiong expressed his belief that
vet erans deserve recognition for their sacrifices, and the bil
woul d clearly identify and respect those who served.

2:47:41 PM

CHAI R TUCK, after ascertaining no one else wished to testify,
cl osed public testinony on HB 125.

2:48: 40 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -17- April 4, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE TARR stated her intent to provide additional
witten testinony to the commttee.

[HB 125 was hel d over.]

2:49: 20 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on MIlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting was
adj ourned at 2:49 p. m

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 18- April 4, 2017



